BY-LAWS OF CHANNEL LAKE BLUFFS ASSOCIATION AN ILLINOIS CORPORATION PASSED AND REVISED JUNE 2020 OCTOBER 2025

ARTICLE I

SECTION 1. NAME

The name of this association is Channel Lake Bluffs Association.

SECTION 2. EMBLEM

The association, its members and their property shall also be known and identified by an emblem or symbol containing the letters "CLBA".

SECTION 3. LOCATION

The principal office of the association shall be 42633 N Woodbine Ave, Antioch, IL 60002 at the residence in Channel Lake Bluffs subdivision of such of the officers as may be designated from time to time by resolution of the board of directors.

SECTION 4. MEMBERS

Each lot owner in Channel Lake Bluffs subdivision, according to the plat thereof recorded in the recorder's office of Lake County, Illinois, in book 1 of plats, page 96, shall be a member of this association with one vote for each lot which they shall own until such time as their membership in said association shall be terminated as hereinafter provided.

SECTION 5. ORGANIZATION

This organization shall be incorporated and do business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois as a corporation not for pecuniary profit.

SECTION 6. SALE OF PROPERTY

In the event of any portion of property sold within the CLBA subdivision —In the event any owner of property in said subdivision shall sell to a non-member any lot or portion thereof in said subdivision, the seller must notify the CLBA Board of Directors—secretary or president of the association, with indication of the sale, listing the new owners legal names and mailing address.

SECTION 7. OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

It is the owner's responsibility to enforce the rules and regulations of the association and to assure that any tenants of the owner's property abide by the rules and regulations of the subdivision. The subdivision board will hold the owners responsible for the tenants' actions regarding these rules and regulations and will take such action as necessary to assure that the owners are meeting these responsibilities.

ARTICLE II

SECTION 1. THE ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of the members of said association shall be on lot "A" (also known as the beach) in said subdivision on the second Saturday in July in each year, at such time on said day as may be determined by the Board of Directors. A written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting shall be mailed by the Secretary of the association at least ten days before such meeting to each member to his, her or its last known post office address as appears upon the register of members of the Secretary. A majority of the members represented in person or by proxy shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the members. Members not represented at the annual meeting in person, or by proxy, shall not be afforded the opportunity to challenge the outcome of any item(s) voted on and passed by those members represented at the annual meeting.

SECTION 2. SPECIAL MEETINGS

Special meetings of the members of said association may be called by the President, or by the Board of Directors or by members owning not less than one-fifth of the lots in said subdivision upon giving at least ten days notice in the manner prescribed for annual meetings, or any other manner provided from time to time by the Board of Directors, which notice shall state the place, day and hour of such meeting, and the purpose for which the meeting is called. All special meetings of the association shall be in such place in the subdivision as shall be designated in the call.

SECTION 3. TIME OF ELECTING DIRECTORS

Directors shall be elected at the regular annual meeting of the members of the said association. If the election of directors is not held on the day of the annual meeting, the directors shall cause the election to be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. No failure to elect directors or to hold the annual meeting at the designated time shall work any forfeiture.

SECTION 4. REGISTER

The Secretary shall keep an official register of the lot owners who are members in good standing, with the residence of each, which list shall be on file with the President and Business Secretary at the principal office of the association.

SECTION 5. WHO MAY VOTE

Each lot owner shall have one vote in the association for each lot owned by them. No lot owner shall vote who shall not have paid their assessment for the improvements as provided for by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 6. ELECTION BY BALLOT

All elections shall be by ballot except that a viva voice vote may be taken on a motion for the secretary to cast the ballot of the association, when carried by two-thirds majority.

SECTION 7. PROXIES

At all meetings, Members may vote either in person or by proxy executed in writing by the member, or by a duly authorized attorney. No proxy shall be valid after thirty days from the date of execution.

ARTICLE III

SECTION 1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall be the officers of the association, to wit: the President, Vice-President, Secretary, Business Secretary, Treasurer, and three additional directors. Said directors may transact business immediately after agreeing to be a director in good faith. shall within 30 days after their election, and preferably immediately after the meeting of the lot holders, meet and transact the business of the association.

SECTION 2. TERM OF OFFICE

At each annual meeting the current Board of Directors will promote members to serve on the Board of Directors. The members shall elect a minimum of three directors for a term of two years, except as hereinafter provided. Each director shall hold their office for the term for which they are elected, and until their successor is elected and qualified. The officers of the association shall be ex-officio directors. The term of office is minimally for the current fiscal year.

SECTION 3. REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS

Immediately after the adjournment of the annual meeting of the members of the association, the newly elected directors shall set a date within 30 days of the annual meeting to meet for the purpose of organization, and the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the board. Other regular meetings shall be held at such time as shall from time to time be determined by the board. The Secretary shall notify each director in writing or by phone of each of the meetings herein before provided for, save the meeting to be determined immediately after the adjournment of the annual meeting of the members. Such notice may be waived by any director.

SECTION 4. SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS

Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held whenever called by the President or by any two of the directors. The President or Secretary shall notify each director by writing or by phone of each special meeting. Such notice may be waived by any director. When all the directors shall be present at any meeting, however called or notified, or shall sign written consent thereto on the record of such meeting, the acts of such meeting shall be as valid as if it had been legally called pursuant to proper notice.

SECTION 5. PLACE OF MEETINGS

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the subdivision at a place to be designated in the call for said meeting.

SECTION 6. QUORUM

A majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.

SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors shall:

- Exercise the powers of the association;
- At least once each year make and complete a detailed report of the financial condition of the association to the members;
- Fill all vacancies which may happen in the Board of Directors caused by death, resignation or otherwise, until the next annual meeting of the members;
- Keep a correct and complete record and books of account of all its business;
- Said directors shall be Be the managers of said association;
- Shall have Have power to provide for the common welfare of the lot owners in the association;
- Have power over the improvement on all association property;
- The care of the necessary provisions for the protection of health of the property owners of the association, such as sewage, and garbage disposal, and general sanitary conditions,
- And shall have power to levy an assessment which shall be distributed equally amongst the lot property owners of the association. each lot owner paying that portion of the assessment that their lot is to the number of lots who maintain their membership in said association.
 Assessments shall be levied from time to time as required for the purpose of the association, and lot owners who do not pay their assessment shall lose the right to their use of all association property and the common privileges of the association. (See SECTION 8. LIABILITY) The directors shall have the power to appoint such agents as may be necessary or desirable. However, the appointment of an agent shall be by two thirds vote of the Board of Directors.
- The executive order powers of the association shall be vested in the President, or Vice-President, then Business Secretary in the absence of the President.

SECTION 8. LIABILITY

LIABILITY. THE LOT OWNERS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE DEBTS CONTRACTED BY ACTIONS OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE ASSOCIATION, PROVIDED THAT SAID LIABILITY IS LIMITED NOT TO EXCEED \$25 PER HOUSE AND \$10 PER LOT UNTIL AN ASSESSMENT IS LEVIED. ASSESSMENTS MAY BE LEVIED FROM TIME TO TIME, WHEN REQUIRED TO PAY THE EXPENSES OF THE ASSOCIATION AND CARRY OUT ITS PURPOSES IN IMPROVING CONDITIONS AND MAINTAINING THE PROPERTY OF THE ASSOCIATION AS HEREIN PROVIDED FOR. THE RIGHTS OF LOT OWNERS MAY BE FORFEITED AND THE SAID LOT OWNERS SHALL CEASE TO BE MEMBERS IN SAID ASSOCIATION AFTER SUCH FORFEITURE FOR FAILURE TO MAKE PAYMENT OF SAID ASSESSMENT. SAID FORFEITURE SHALL BE PRECEDED BY A NOTICE OF THIRTY DAYS TO MAKE PAYMENT OF SAID ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE

LIMITED TO THE SUM OF \$10 FOR EACH LOT PER YEAR EXCEPT WHEN PETITIONED FOR BY A THIRD OF THE LOT OWNERS WHEN ANY AMOUNT SO PETITIONED FOR MAY BE LEVIED. ASSESSMENTS OF NOT TO EXCEED \$5 PER LOT ARE RECOMMENDED, BUT THE DIRECTORS SHALL HAVE THE POWER TO LEVY UP TO \$10 PER LOT AS REQUIRED TO MEET THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE ASSOCIATION.

Section 8 rewritten as:

The CLBA property owners are liable for the association's expenses, contracted by the Directors of the Association to maintain the common areas. These debts are paid through an annual assessment fee per address and per lot which are levied at the annual meeting. These fees are collected to carry out its purposes in improving conditions and maintaining the property of the association as herein provided for. Property owners who do not pay their assessment shall lose the right to their use of all association property and the common privileges of the association. (From SECTION 7. RESPONSIBILITIES)

SECTION 9. COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors may from among its membership appoint such committees as it may from time to time by resolution determine, and the board may delegate to such committees the powers vested in it as it may by resolution of appointment determine. Such committees appointed shall observe such rules and regulations for their conduct and keep such records as the board may from time to time by resolution determine.

SECTION 10. COSTS OF COLLECTION (NEW)

If the assessment and late charge is not paid within 30 days of written demand, then the owner shall be responsible for all costs of collection including recovering fees, attorney fees and any other costs associated with collection.

SECTION 11. QUALIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Only owners of property in Channel Lake Bluffs subdivision shall be eligible as officers, directors, or committee members in said association, and if any officer or director of said association ceases to be a property owner therein, their office shall terminate at the same time that their property interest ceases.

SECTION 12. VOTING

The directors of said association may vote by proxy and each director shall be entitled to only one vote at any general or special meeting of the board.

SECTION 13. REMUNERATION

The directors and officers shall receive a compensation of \$35.00 each year that they serve on the board. If for any reason an officer or director does not complete their term of office they must reimburse CLBA their compensation for the year not served.

SECTION 14. LATE CHARGE

If each lot owner's liability or assessments are not paid by December 31 October 31 of each year a late charge, as set by a majority vote at the annual meeting, will be added to the amount owed to the CLBA.

ARTICLE IV

SECTION 1. OFFICERS

The officers of this association shall consist of a President, Vice-President, Secretary, Business Secretary and Treasurer. Such officers when elected or appointed shall hold office for the period of two years and until their respective successors shall have been duly elected, or appointed and shall have qualified; provided, however that all officers, directors, agents and employees of the association shall be subject to removal at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the board.

SECTION 2. VACANCIES

If any vacancy shall occur among the officers of the association, such vacancy shall be filled immediately by the Board of Directors. The person filing such vacancy will assume the term of the person they are replacing. Any associate board members may have priority to fill such vacancies.

SECTION 3. PRESIDENT

It shall be the duty of the President to:

- Preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the members.
- They shall have general supervision over the entire business of the association and over its special officers and agents subject, however, to the control of the board.
- They shall see that all orders and resolutions of the board are carried into effect.
- They shall execute all contracts, bonds and agreements authorized by the board
- They shall submit to the board and to the members at their respective annual meetings in July of each year, a complete report of the operations and affairs of the corporation for the preceding fiscal year.
- From time to time they shall report to the board all matters within their knowledge which the interest of the association may require.

SECTION 4. THE VICE-PRESIDENT

- In the absence of or in case of the inability of the President to act, the Vice-President shall perform all duties and have the powers of the President.
- The Vice-President shall, in addition, perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, by resolution determine.

SECTION 5. THE SECRETARY

The Secretary shall:

- Attend all sessions of the board, and all meetings of the members, and record all votes. and the
 Post minutes of all proceedings on the CLBA website. in a book to be kept for that purpose; and
 shall perform like duties for the standing committees when required.
- They shall give or cause to be given notice of all meetings by order of the President, Board of Directors or lot holders;
- They shall give all notices necessary to be given the members of the association,
- They shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or President, under whose supervision they shall be.

SECTION 6. THE TREASURER

The Treasurer shall:

- Have custody of the corporate funds and securities
- They shall keep full and accurate accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the association
- They shall deposit all monies and all valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the association in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors.
- They shall collect all dues, assessments and other outstandings of the association and keep proper records thereof.
- Turn all monies and funds received by them, to the Treasurer as and when received, taking their receipt therefore.
- They shall disburse the funds of the association as shall be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements
- They shall render to the President and directors at the regular meetings of the board or whenever they may require it, an account of all their transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the association.

SECTION 7. BONDS

Any person with access to association funds shall give bond in the amount approved by the Board of Directors and signed by a surety company satisfactory to the board. This bond is for the faithful performance of their duties and for the restoration to the association in case of their death, resignation, retirement or removal from office of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind that is in their possession or under their control belonging to the association. All premiums payable to surety companies on the bonds shall be paid by the association.

SECTION 8. AUDITING COMMITTEE

At the close of each fiscal year the President shall select from among the members of said association who are not officers or directors, three persons who shall constitute an auditing committee and whose duty it shall be to audit and examine the books, records, accounts and reports of the Secretary and Treasurer for the past year and to make a written report or audit thereon to the members of the association at their annual meeting for such year, signed by at least a majority of the members of such committee.

ARTICLE IV

SECTION 1. TRANSFER OF MEMBERSHIP

Membership in the association shall automatically change with the transfer of a lot. The new members shall notify the Secretary of the association within thirty days from the transfer. The Secretary shall make the transfer in the register book of the membership, and shall acknowledge the transfer and notify the new member.

SECTION 2. MEMBER ADDRESSES

Every member shall furnish the Secretary with their address, at which notice of meetings and all other notices may be served upon or mailed to them.

ARTICLE VI

SECTION 1. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year shall begin on the first day of July in each year and end on the 30th day of June in the year following.

ARTICLE VII

SECTION 1. AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended at any general or special meeting of the property owners upon a vote of two-thirds such property owners in good standing, which vote shall be by ballot, in person, or by proxy. A minimum of thirty days advance written notice must be given to all property owners.